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CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm gonna call the Land Use Committee meeting to order.
(gavel) Good afternoon everyone. Today on our agenda we have four
items--LU-14, -28, -20 and -19. At this time I've been asked by Jim Smith
if he could testify early on item number 19. So I'm gonna ask him to come
forward to testify. Jim. And if there's anyone else that wants to testify,
please sign up. While Jim is coming up, I'd like to acknowledge the
members that we have here. Councilmember Dain Kane, Pat Kawano,
Robert Carroll, Riki Hokama, Jo Anne Johnson, and Mike Molina.
Charmaine Tavares is ill and Wayne asked to be excused so they will not
be present. Joe, Joe Alueta is here representing Planning Department.
Brian Moto from our Corp. Counsel. Our staff, David and Yvette, will be
working this. So if you have any questions and those of you that want to
testify, again, come up to Yvette and she will sign you up. Okay. Jim.

LU-19

LAND-USE DEFINITIONS (c.c. No. 01-63)

... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ..

MR. SMITH: Chairman Arakawa, uh, members of the Land Use Committee, my
name is Jim Smith. I'm a resident of Haiku and I'm here to testify on Land
Use item 19 which is land use definitions. This is a very profound subject
as far as I'm concerned and I approach this with, uh, some caution. I
would first like to say that the example that was provided in the, in the
binder and that being a failed piece of legislation, I don't think is really
useful in considering whether or not and where effectiveness and
ineffectiveness resides in the application of law.
I first like to reference the Hawaii Supreme Court and they've noted that
it's a primary duty of the court in interpreting and applying statutes to
ascertain and give effect to legislature's intention to the fullest degree.
So when I consider this subject of land use definitions, I find that you know
a single word and what a single word means, is not really the key to the
problem that we perceive which is ineffectiveness. I think the problem
exists in the executive branch where there's a application or a requirement
to enforce. And I think an example from that area might be more useful
for this Committee to decide on whether or not legislation is required or
could in fact remedy the perception of ineffective land use law.
And so what I'm here today is to suggest that how land use law is applied
determines it, its effectiveness, and to ask you not to look at a single word,
but look at the thought. Look at what it is we need to address. What it is
that needs to be approached and not the word because the lawyers use
the words to mean what is beneficial to them and other people use them
to effectuate a sale or to facilitate an action. But in law it's your intent and
your purpose that has to be clear and it's also your intent and your
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purpose that has to be applied. And when confusion exist as to that, then
we are into trouble. So to me I would ask you to focus on this idea that in
fact we are talking about a political concept and the idea is the interpreter
of the word is king in a monarchy, okay. And, and that's one political
system, okay, but the applicator of law in our society, okay, puts the law
as being the king and that's where we need to focus. Reverence for
legislative intent and purpose not facilitating, not mitigating. Protecting
this one concept. It's the intent of the frame as were here ten years before
me that we need to revere and honor, not my will, not my will, the law.
And so I would ask you to direct your attention to this concept that it is the
application of law where ineffectiveness resides, and not in the definition
or meaning of a single word in the ordinance. Thank you very much .
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ..

LU-14

REQUEST FROM HARRY AND SANDRA HUEU FOR A
CONDITIONAL PERMIT (c.c. No. 00-257)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Jim. Any questions for Jim? If not, thank you
very much. Is there anyone else that wants to testify? Okay, seeing
none. Members, we'll be going into land Use item number 14. This the
request from Harry and Sandra Hueu for a Conditional Permit. The
Planning Director has transmitted through the County Communication No.
00-257 and a proposed bill entitled "A Bill FOR AN ORDINANCE
GRANTING A CONDITIONAL PERMIT IN ORDER TO OPERATE A
SNACK STAND WITHIN THE COUNTY AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT
FOR PROPERTY SITUATED IN KEANAE, HAWAII". The purpose of the
bill is to grant a Conditional Permit to sell an expanded list of
non-agricultural items from the existing agricultural product stand of
approximately 1.013 acres of land within the County Agricultural District,
Keanae, Maui, Hawaii.
The status at this point, the Committee will consider whether to
recommend passage of the proposed bill on first reading. The Coun ...
the Committee may also file this item after we're done with deliberations.
At this time I'd like to ask the applicants to come forward and make your
presentation. When you come forward, larry, if you can identify yourself
and Sandra for the record, thank you.
MR. ING: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee. I'm
Lawrence Ing and with me is Sandra Hueu who is one of the applicants in
this matter with her husband Harry.
Real briefly, I know you have a lot of material in front of you, but the
agricultural stand is on the Hueu property that they have owned for couple
generations. Historically in the Keanae Peninsula there were more than
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one store. In fact there's been testimony that there were at one time
maybe two stores and even a theatre and a very active park there, but as
we note, things change. Maybe with the closing of the Hana Sugar
Plantation people began moving out of Hana, out of Keanae and those
stores and the theater were closed probably they were no longer
economically feasible. Today it's a little different story. People are
moving back to their roots, back to property that their family own, but also
we have visitors that come in numbers that never were there before. The
fruit stand or agricultural product stand has been opened since May 1999.
However, with the passage of the agricultural ordinance by the County
Council, we now discovered that in addition to the Special Use Permit,
which was granted back then, we also needed a Conditional Use Permit
from this Council and that's why we're here before you today. We'd be
happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR ARAKAWA:
Any questions,
comments? Well, excuse me.

members?

Planning

Department,

MR. ALUETA: No comments.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Pat, you had a question?
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, uh, while we're going through this
if we have any questions can we call Mr. Ing back?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: On stand?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes. Absolutely.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: You're gonna allow that, yeah.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah. They're, they're making the presentation so they
have to answer the questions. Bob, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No, that answered my question.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So from the Planning Department you don't wanna
make comments on the project, uh, what is the Department's position.
MR. ALUETA: Uh, the Department does have a video. Urn ... as far as the
comments on the project, this project has been, uh, around for a few years
as stated by the applicant. They were granted a State Land Special Use
Permit. With the passage of the agricultural bill, the uses, part of the uses
were not considered permitted within the new agricultural bill. The
applicant, um, I should say the Council at that time passed a resolution,
um, which WOUld've expedited the passage of the Conditional Permit for
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this property. They opted to at the time withdraw from that resolution and
to reduce the scope of their project so that they could get operational
faster. So they reduced the scope of the original project down to qualify
as an agricultural stand. They are now asking for expanding uses
including hot dogs, pre-cooked hot dogs, hamburgers, ice cream and cold
cut sandwiches which are clearly not agriculturally related, and therefore
Conditional Permit is required and that's what you're dealing with today.
If, um ... Council wishes, we do have a video of the project site if you'd
like to see it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Why don't you play that, the tape, the video.
(pause)
MR. ALUETA: (videotape presentation) This is the project site from Keanae
Road. You can see the stand. They do have a few signs along with a
soda machine fronting the project. This is the cottage that's located on the
property and this is looking down Keanae Road and then you can see
Keanae Landing. Across the way is Keanae Landing and I believe
conservation land. This is the road that goes down and it heads down
toward Keanae, the ballpark. This is the back of the property or backside
of the building. You can see agricultural land. There is, um, some
agricultural activities. There's papaya's along with . . . the applicant I
believe is in the process of trying to restore some taro patches. (pause)
And that's pretty much it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Joe.
(pause)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So, members, um, at this point the Conditional Use Permit
that the applicant is coming in for is so that they can be allowed to sell
pre-cooked hot dogs, hamburgers, ice cream, cold cut sandwiches. Am I
missing something?
(pause)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Um, in addition to the agricultural products that
they are currently selling, um, it is, uh ... are there any discussion,
members? Mike then Oain.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, I had a question for the applicant if
that's appropriate at this time.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, it is.
(pause)
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MS. HUEU: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Hi, Ms. Hueu. Thank you for coming by. I was
looking over the minutes of the Hana Advisory Committee meeting which
was back on June 26 of 2000 and, uh ... in there you mentioned that
there are other people that I guess have something similar to what you're
wanting to have, um ...
MS. HUEU: Yes, there are several stands all along the Hana Highway. Down at
the peninsula I'm the only one there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And do they also have, you know, non-agricultural
products that they're selling that you know of?
MS. HUEU: Yes. And apparently because we're on County road where the
other stands are on State highway, um, they only needed a Special Use
Permit allowed by the State where ... because I'm on the County road
they're saying I need a Conditional County Permit.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and my questions aren't
for the applicant so ...
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... I don't have any questions for them.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Pat, you have questions for the applicant?
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So you wanna sell
hot dogs and cole ... coleslaw is that ...
MS. HUEU: Ice cream and a few other items that aren't by ag and the reason for
this is that some of the tourists--I mean we get a lot of tourists
and, um ... and you know I know some comments were made because
my stand is there they're gonna--more people are gonna come down and
that is not true. People go down to the peninsula because it's beautiful.
It's a beautiful view, it's a beautiful site. There's a beautiful old Hawaiian
historical church there and the Keanae Point, Keanae Landing which has
a lot of history, um ... and, um ... when they get there and the bulk of the
people are there from about say about quarter to 11 to about 1 and
they're, they're hungry, they're thirsty and, um ... and they're looking for a
little snack more than just a fruit. And because, you know, our fruits are
so seasonal, you know, we don't have mangoes all year long, we don't,
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you know, and so I thought we could supplement the income by having a
little more than just what we do have.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Okay, getting back to my question is, uh, to sell that
kind of stuff you need a certified kitchen. You have a certified kitchen-MS. HUEU: I do have a certified kitchen.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Okay. I just, just wanted to check on that.
MS. HUEU: Okay. In fact I think I'm the only one on the Hana Highway with the
certified kitchen right at my stand.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: And I'm glad this project is coming up because and
then--thank you for the photo, but looking at it, uh, I thought you were
showing us the road because-(laughter by Ms. Hueu)
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: --I can see where there's a lot of holes in the road that I
think the Councilman from there-MS. HUEU: Oh. Oh-oh, but you gotta get after the County then. (laughter)
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: No, the Council member from there I think you gotta get
on him. (chuckled) No, but thank you. I ... while looking at it you can't
help but look at the road because a good size puka on the road, yeah, but
thank you. That's all I have. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. My comments are not, uh, to
the applicant but to the counsel.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, anybody for the applicant at this point? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I, I just wanted to, in reading through all
the information that's in here, I'm getting a sense that you were doing this
before. Were you selling these other kinds of items is that why you have a
certified kitchen?
MS. HUEU: No. I just ... when I did the stand I wanted to be, uh, you know,
when I talked to the Board of Health they had said and I was in
partnership with Mrs. Chong up on the highway and we didn't have a
certified kitchen there, you know. And when I did my stand down at the
lower peninsula, he had said that to cut even a pineapple or a papaya you
need a certified kitchen. So I thought okay, if I'm gonna do this I'm gonna
do this right and do the whole five things, you know, the whole thing that
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they told us to do. So we went that route and because I bake. I bake
banana bread every day.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And then the other thing I noticed it
seems that one of the testifier's at this meeting had said that many of the
local people come there as much as the tourists. Is that still true?
MS. HUEU: Maybe on the weekends or some of the younger kids. Everybody
else is too busy working, farming.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, you know, 'cause what I'm trying to get a
sense of is that it's something that people use to have-MS. HUEU: Around there-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --but that now there's really no place out there
where they can go. So you would be serving the local community by
offering these things as much as you would the tourists. Would you say
that's accurate?
MS. HUEU: That's accurate because they run out of sugar too and they'll come
to me or if there's a loaf of bread ... you'd be surprised.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay. Thank you.
MS. HUEU: Uh-huh.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions for the applicants? Okay, if
not, okay, Dain you had a question. I will make you aware, urn, there
were two handouts that are on your desk. One is from Elaine Wender and
the other one is from attorney Lawrence Ing. Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. My question, Mr. Chairman, thank you
for allowing me the floor. First question will be to Corporation Counsel if I
may.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Urn ... Mr. Moto, urn ... one of the
written testimonies that were submitted today refers to the interoffice
correspondence on May 21 st, 1999, which is a memo to Councilmember
Wayne Nishiki from Kelly Cairns, uh, regarding the subject of the fruit
stand permit requirements.
In there there's a brief discussion on Page 3 of the memo. Talking about,
urn ... the variations of Special Use Permits and, and Conditional Use
Permits.
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My question is regarding this application, are the additional products being
sold or asked to be sold or proposed, will they still be consistent with the
purpose of the agricultural zoning ordinance? And I guess it's 19.30A
Maui County Code, Section 19.510.070. So is there consistency with the
addition of these products?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Brian.
MR. MOTa: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
MR. MOTa: Uh ... first of all let me note that I was given by, uh ... Council
staff just a few minutes ago the copy of the May 21 memo that, uh, Kelly
Cairns did for Mr. Nishiki on the fruit stand permit requirements.
Uh ... because of the date of the memo, I'm gonna assume that this
memo was done when this stand had an earlier inclination of some kind
of-CHAIR ARAKAWA: And the date being made 21 S \ 1999.
MR. MOTa: 1999. So it's a couple years old. I can say that skimming through
her memo on the bottom of the same page that you just read from, Page
3, she says that the sale of a limited amount of process products does not
transform an agricultural product stand selling primarily agricultural
products into an impermissible use. Allowing a limited amount of
incidental sale items with the appropriate public review, with the
appropriate public review via the special use permit process is consistent
wit the plain language of the agricultural zoning ordinance.
Urn ... so I ... based upon her memo, I think it's fair to conclude that
where the sale of additional items is incidental to its primary, uh, purpose,
mainly the sale on, on-site agricultural products, it will be,
uh ... permissible provided that they obtain the required permits that they
need and which is why they're here before you today for the Conditional
Permit. Without that, without today's Conditional Permit agenda item they
would be restricted to, urn, urn, uh ... an inventory limited to farm
products produced on site.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Does that answer you question, Dain?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And my next question is for Planning, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Mr. Min, there's also a reference in this
memo that states that the Planning Department was drafting a rule which
would specify the types and amounts of items, incidental to the agricultural
products which would be sold. To date has anything been drafted
regarding those rules, and if so, would you be able to point those out for
us?
MR. MIN: Yes. We do have some draft rules that were prepared, however, we
have not forwarded it, you know, we have not actually conducted a
hearing on it to formally adopt those rules.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Now these rules, Mr. Chairman if I may, these rules,
is there a link between what was just stated by Mr. Moto in determining
that we've added some products? Is there some sort of criteria set as to
at what point it would lose ... you would lose the intent of what the
agricultural zoning laws, ordinances, uh, what the purpose is for, the intent
of it?
MR. MIN: Yeah, as I recall that is, that is the objective of those rules to try to
define what would be permissible within the agricultural district, and if the
project exceeds that limit, then it would trigger a Conditional Permit
situation.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you. Thank you very much.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? Pat then Bob.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Oh, go ahead, Bob.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Bob.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: I'll give Bob chance. I already opened my mouth.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Excuse me, Bob (inaudible).
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Actually not questions, but comment.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I've, uh, seen this project from its initiation when
it first started and I've known the family in the area for over 40 years.
They run a very, very clean operation as anybody can see with the video.
They have a very small portion of the business actually that transit, that,
uh, goes back and forth on Hana Highway. I don't know what the number
of cars had turned out, but I know it's very small compared to the overall
traffic. I'd like to see our people do things like this. It's good I believe for
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the community of Keanae and Wailua to have something like that
especially for Lower Keanae, and I would hope that at the appropriate time
that the Council would pass this. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Pat.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Again, too, uh, Mr.
Chairman, Mr. Chairman if I may, and to piggyback on Councilman Kane's
questioning as far as the rules that John you folks are working on it. What
is the process that we're gonna see that and when can we see that?
Because I, I look at it like it's gonna come and we're gonna have a lot of
this kind of stands like this so ...
MR. MIN: Yeah, we, you know, again the rules have been drafted. They're in a
draft form. We just haven't moved it up because we have some other
legislative work. For example the open space bill that we're trying to, you
know, move out sooner. So for me it's kind of a juggling act as far as, you
know, getting it, uh, you know, moving it in relation to other projects, but
we have done work on it. And we did this work really, um, at the
recommendation of Kelly, Kelly Cairns when she was our Deputy
Corporation Counsel and, uh ... um ... again, you know, for us it's just a
matter of priorities. We do intend to do that, you know, in the near future,
uh ...
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Thank you, John. Excuse me. Thank you, John, but I
do hope you folks speed it up because I think we're gonna have things like
this that comes before us especially, uh ... district like Hana, Molokai like
that, yeah. So if you can sort of speed that up and put it on your, up on
your priority list I would appreciate it. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, uh ... this is a question for Brian Moto.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would like to know if by granting this would we
be establishing or setting precedent for other people who have similar
situations in ag districts, uh ... so that when other applicants came before
us they would also say well, this was granted therefore you approved of
that. Would we be then setting precedent?
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, discretionary decisions of this type do not by
themselves establish a binding precedent. The applicant's proposal here
is for a Conditional Permit that will be issued based upon the
circumstances, the unique circumstances that apply to this application and
are based on part upon the previous review done by the Maui Planning
Commission on this same subject. And every application is limited to its

LU 02126101

Page 12

facts and, um, and has to be reviewed as such. Therefore no two
applications are the same or identical. There may be some non,
uh ... nonlegal concerns, uh, extra--I mean when I say I mean political or
other social, uh ... arguments for equitable treatment or same treatment.
I'm just addressing the legal ones for now. Know the fact is that every
application will have to go through that, that presents similar types of uses
in a similar situation would have to go through the very same process of
review and no two cases are gonna be the same exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And then the second question. There
was a statement made--I don't have it right in front of me, but I think it was
in, uh ... I guess it was in the letter from Ms., uh ... Elaine Wender. She
makes a statement and she cites "the Cultural Resources Commission
found that the snack stand would have a negative impact on traditional
Hawaiian taro farming on the Keanae Peninsula and agreed with the study
prepared by the Planning Department in 1995 ... ". And then she cites
the name of the study "which concluded that commercial endeavors in this
community should be restricted to the highway". And it says "nevertheless
the Maui Planning Commission granted the SUP".
So, are you basically by the comments you just previously made and also
by the comments made in Ms. Wender's statement saying that because
this is a special circumstance that the rule cannot be uniformly applied in
that we should look at this differently than we, we would other projects?
(pause)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Brian.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, uh ... let me make sure that I, I ... address certain
points clearly. I'm not suggesting any deviation from the, the, the,
uh ... criteria or processes that would apply to anyone who's seeking
Conditional Permit under Chapter 19.40 of the Maui County Code. I
mean, to that extent no, I'm not saying that there should be a different
standard or criteria for different applicants. The same rules would apply to
everyone. What is true, however, is that no two applicants are gonna be
presenting precisely the same sort of facts for the reviewer. No two uses
are in identi ... identical locations for example or present the same or
similar--or present identical issues regarding traffic or parking or you name
it. There will be some differences.
I have to say and admit that I'm not familiar with the CRC's action on this
particular subject.
I was just not ... that's not within my realm of
knowledge. I wasn't with them at the time. Perhaps the Planning
Department is more familiar with their review of this matter.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: You're done, Jo Anne?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Would the Planning Department care to
comment on the part that Mr. Moto could not answer?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Brian, would you like to comment on the CRC area?
Excuse me, John? If you want little bit of time let me ... if I, if I may just
say couple words while they're looking for that information. When we're
doing the ag bill, the ag bill was not a bill that was done lightly. We took a
lot of time with the ag bill, and there were a lot of areas within the ag bill
that we needed to look at. One of the areas was fruit stands and things of
this nature. And when we were working on this, and Pat you can correct
me if I'm wrong on this, one of the things that we decided was a lot of
these issues need to be decided on a case-by-case basis and that we
would deci ... we not do regulations that would just permit it, but rather
we would request that they come in on a case-by-case so that we could
make a decision as to whether they would be detrimental to that
community or not, and that's the reason why this Conditional Use Permit
system is there. There were, the Council was fairly well split at the time as
to whether to just allow these kinds of things to happen or to not allow it,
and we decided to err on the side of future Council making intelligent
decision based on the facts that we're facing them. So that's where we're
at at this point.
The modifications that we're talking about, urn, if you remember the ag bill
we worked on it and we passed it just before our session was over. So
there were a lot of areas where the clear definitions were not put in and
that is like SBR we're working on that, uh, introducing that today, but there
were many areas where, when the land use designations, the zoning
areas were put in they were not completed out. So in cases, urn, of
definition the total project was never really completed and that's part of the
process we're gonna be talking about in our last item. So, if John if you're
ready? I'm trying to buy you a little bit of time. (chuckled)
MR. ALUETA: I'll give it a best shot, urn ... this project, I'll try to back up a little
bit with some history. This project has been around, urn, for, uh, since '97.
So it's not a ... it's been kicked around I guess you could say and gone
through many different permit procedures. And when it first came in and
back in '96 - '97 as just as a straight generic State Land Special Use
Permit, urn, this project was reviewed by--and one of the reviewing
agencies was the Cultural Resources Commission, and I believe the
Keanae Wailuanui Cultural Study book that they looked into and which
has specific language. The Department also looked at the community
plans for guidelines for permissible uses in determining a Special Use
Permit. It is not mandated by law that you have consistency with the
community plan and the use to, to be granted a Special Use Permit. It's
one of those situation. The State has their own laws and there's five
criteria, you know, uh, which, which are reviewed. This thing was
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reviewed by the Hana Advisory Committee. They did meet in Keanae in a
very hot and muggy, um, room this, this issue was hotly debated and, um,
if you go back and read some of the minutes and some of those ... what
basically came out of that, of those long meetings was they granted
approval but they could not come up with conditions. They wanted to
come up with conditions, and then when they came back the next ... we
even held another meeting on the matter, they just could not come up with
a set of commission, conditions. So they left it up, so they, they passed it
out of the Hana Advisory Committee meeting to the Maui Planning
Commission, um ... just saying that we voted to approve it but we, they
deadlocked on what items to allow to be sold. So, uh ... but the Planning
Commission they agreed with the Hana Advisory Committee as far as
granting the approval and set out specific conditions as far as what can be
sold. And so that's where it came out. So this was re ... I mean ... yes,
the CRC did not take or had some specific concerns over the project that
was taking into consideration by both Hana Advisory Committee and by
the Maui Planning Commission. But based on the overall record the
Planning Commission granted, uh, granted the Special Use Permit. With
regards to the Conditional Permit that we're acting out today, uh, because
of the change with the ag bill, they're now required to, uh, comply with the
State or County agricultural district and, um ... it was determined by the,
by the Planning Commission, uh, excuse me, by the Planning Department
that the proposed or the uses were not consistent with the County
agricultural district and did not qualify as a fruit stand. So they backed up
and withdrew, uh ... not withdraw, but they sort of withdraw their Special
Use Permit and cut back on the items so they would qualify as an
agricultural fruit stand and that's where they eliminated the hamburgers,
the hot dogs, a lot of that stuff. And, um ... and now they wanna expand
so they came in and file for the Conditional Permit. And so that's where
we stand today is basically trying to basically add on the items that they
previously had back in 1997. So that's kind of where we stand today.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So I guess what you're saying, Joe, is that
where the Hana Advisory Committee failed, we're suppose to succeed.
(chuckled)
MR. ALUETA: The Planning Commission did succeed in coming up with
conditions with regards to the Special Use, uh ... Permit as far as the
uses, hours of operations and types of things that could be sold. And all I
can say is that it was a very hotly dis ... in the early stages back in '97 '98 this was a very hot item with regards to nonagricultural items being
sold within the agricultural district and, um ... but given the economic
situation in Keanae, um, they felt that this was an appropriate use with
limitations, meaning size, and the look of the building, screening of the
soda machine. If you see there's a several pages on, in the minutes
discussing how do you screen a soda machine. So, uh ... a lot of things
were taken into consideration before being recommended for approval.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, I don't know if this question is more
appropriate for Planning or Corp. Counsel, but we'll start with Planning.
John or Joe, when will this fruit stand not be considered a fruit stand over
the long term because if say the applicant decides to delve into say plate
lunches which include pork or chicken--I mean when will ... what kinds of
conditions are there before this becomes considered maybe a
mini-restaurant where you'd have to ... if I believe if you start a restaurant
you're looking into putting bathroom facilities and so forth.
MR. ALUETA: We have already made a determination that it does not qualify as
an agricultural fruit stand.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. ALUETA: And therefore they did require and obtain a State Land Use
Special Use Permit on the State side, and on the County side they're
requesting this Conditional Permit. So they no longer, they ... because of
the expanded uses they, they are not an agricultural fruit stand.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. So they can expand into plate lunches
with other ... other things besides hamburgers and hot dogs?
MR. ALUETA: No, this, this Conditional Permit along with the State Land Use
Special Use Permit specifically limits the items of nonagricultural items. I
think they're gonna ...
MR. MIN: Okay, if I can just add to that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MR. MIN: In the recommendation for approval from the Planning Commission,
uh, there is an existing condition that specifies what can be sold, okay.
And they're largely agricultural products, okay. But added to that and
that's the subject of this Conditional Use Permit is that the following would
also be allowed: pre, pre-cooked hot dogs and hamburgers, ice cream
and cold cut sandwiches, okay. So that ... those additional products are
being requested as part of this Conditional Permit and this Conditional
Permit limits those additional products to, to those items only.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But what I'm saying in the long term can they, if
the applicant decides once this permit expires I guess after two years.
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MR. MIN: If the applicant wants to further expand that list, they would need to
come back and amend the Conditional Permit and come back to this
Council to get approval to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay
MR. MIN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And that's-MR. MIN: Yes. And they would also need to amend the State Land Use
Commission Special Use Permit which is approved by the Planning
Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right, thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Does that answer your question?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Really, really basically what it does is by allowing this
Conditional Use Permit process it allows the Council to have review again.
And if it's deemed at that time that it's appropriate that it can be passed
out with additions or corrections or it can be restricted so the Council has
the final approval as to what's actually gonna happen there. And however
time changes and whatever the circumstances are that's what needs to be
evaluated at that time and that's all what's happening in this process,
okay. Any further questions? Rick.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Min for the Committee's sake,
you know, the Board of Water Supply has made it clear over the years
regarding lack of infrastructure and that if this was a commercial request
more than likely the way I read the letter, Department's letter is that they
would recommend denial. What makes this okay to move ahead under
the Conditional Use request? You know they mention a 4-inch waterline.
They're not granting or, or, uh, making any comments regarding the
availability of the County to provide fire protection for this property. I'm
just curious. I'm, I'm sure that the applicant and landowner is aware of
limitations to, to service a property.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Why, why don't I ask the applicant to come down. Maybe
you can ask that question more directly, Rick. Larry, you guys wanna
come down and address the water?
MR. ING: I don't know if the, my answer would just be limited to that, but
basically I think what we're maybe need to emphasize is there is a list of
many agricultural related products that have been sold and that we open
the stand back in May 1999 and we said let's try and see what happens.
Can we survive? And I think the idea of being, going out to Keanae
knowing the limited number of economic opportunity that is out there that
we wanted to be independent, self-sufficient, and this was one way of
doing it by having a agricultural stand. So we opened it, we tried it, but a
lot of the people that did come by--Iocals, tourists--would ask for more
things to be sold to them, plus these things would make it more
economically feasible to continue to be open.
Insofar as, you know, the water situation, I think that's sort of a standard
answer where if you were gonna do anything besides residential,
commercial, apartment houses, the Water Department is giving you
notice. You only have a 4-inch line there. If there's a fire, you're not
gonna have any help to put out the fire from that 4-inch line, and I think
you see that similar letter out to many other areas of the County and that
is understandable. But here we're talking, you know, not something that
somebody's gonna live in, sleep in, and it's--the hours are limited. I
believe it clo ... it opens at a certain time, it closes at an early time so that
the dangers represented by maybe any structure, commercial structure
that would not have sufficient water flow to put out a fire, uh, doesn't exist.
So we're not concerned about the Water Department saying that they will
not be able to provide such protection. We understand their position.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, this, Mr. Ing this is in addition to the dwelling
that is already on that property ... Mrs. Hueu you have a, another
dwelling on that property? I mean I just trying to get, get information that's
provided to us.
MS. HUEU: There's a, there's a two-bedroom cottage and then there's also the
stand.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But it's two separate structures?
MS. HUEU: Yes. And I'd like to add, um, I think they do that to, to really protect
themselves because they've never ... I mean if you look back in history
they haven't saved a home in Keanae, Nahiku ... the whole area. So I
think that's the way of them protecting themselves, Fire Department.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, but they, but they've made you aware of
your limitations Mrs. Hueu?
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MR. HUEU: Yes. Uh-huh. I think I could do more damage with my water hose.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm sure you could. (chuckled)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You would have to. Does that answer you question, Rick?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
gonna say.

Well, I wanna hear what the Department is

MR. MIN: First of all, I would like to point out that the commercial kitchen and
when the project was reviewed previously by the Department of Fire
Control and there were some questions that were responded to
subsequently by the applicant. And on ... , uh ... and the Department of
Fire Control subsequently approved the certificate of occupancy for this
project, for this building, okay. And they did note that there are fire
extinguishers and other types of improvements, uh ... for this particular
project.
You know, we do, we do get a situation where, uh, from the standpoint of,
um ... the Department of Water Supply they may have comments
regarding fire protection related to their system, but we also get comments
from the Department of Fire Control indicating that if certain safety
improvements are implemented that they would have no objections. I
think in this particular instance, uh ... you know again the Fire
Department has indicated through its inspection that it meets (change of
tape)

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If I ... say it again, please, John. The fire in ...
MR. MIN: Okay. Yeah, from the standpoint of the Department of Fire Control-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. MIN: --they have issued a, um ... uh ... a certificate of inspection for the
property indicating that the proposed building or the building meets their
requirements, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Does that an ... answer your question, Rick?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah. I, I understand how they, how they
arrived at this, this point of time, Chairman, so ...
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I just wanna make sure that you're satisfied with the
answers. Okay, any further-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? No further questions? If not, the,
um ... the Chair would like to recommend passage of this Conditional
Use Permit, uh ... if I could have a motion to that effect.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It was moved by ... who made the motion?
seconded by Dain. Discussion?

Riki.

And

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Rick.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: With the conditions as attached to-CHAIR ARAKAWA: With the conditions as attached.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And the underlined allowing the, uh, use of the hot dog
stand, the ... excuse me. Let me find that page so we can do it exactly
right. The addition of pre-cooked hot dogs, hamburgers, ice cream, cold
cut sandwiches. Okay, any further discussion? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh, I, I was, you know, in reading the memo
that was sent on May 21 s t, 1999, where the ... it states that they were
granted the State Special Use Permit on March 10th , 1998 and the items
that could be sold it list them which are hot and cold drinks, sandwiches,
hot dogs, chips, candies, yogurt, bake goods, fresh fruits, smoothies, ice
cream and shave ice ... shave ice and raw produce from the surrounding
area. Essentially because of the fact that they were permitted to sell these
things, I think the only thing that's not on the list is hamburgers-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --which they're now applying for. I believe that
at that time this was prior to the passage I believe of the ag bill, and based
on that I would support the measure. I still would support it with
reservations though because I believe that in ag land you should have
agricultural uses and I would prefer to see some of the things like perhaps
taro burgers or a greater percentage of things that actually come from the
land as oppose to, uh, pre-packaged things and things that are not
occurring on the property. So that's my only comment.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. And just to, a brief history of, of your comment that
was discussed a lot when we were discussing the ag bill whether it was
appropriate to allow supplemental products of non-agricultural product,
products to help supplement existing agricultural base uses to allow for
the survivability of businesses and agriculture that were having trouble.
So we'll have further discussions when we bring up the ag bill again. Dain
you had your hand up first then Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, I'll yield to Mr. Carroll.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I think it's a good project. I
think it's good for the people of Keanae, and I would hope that the rest of
the Council members can support me in this. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Dain, did you wanna comment?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'll be supporting the motion on the floor, but again
my, my concern with the question that I asked earlier will be making sure
that we get some criteria set up with the Planning Department so as to
provide more clarity for people when they come in for application that they
can understand what it's gonna take to get through the process. At this
time it kinda makes it difficult and I think Ms. Hueu can ... I think she was
feeling a little nervous by the amount of questions, but I think it revolved
around some of the technicalities that we involve ourselves in, in, within
the process and so I could sense without even turning around her
nervousness, um ... because of the question it makes, you know, it made
her feel uncomfortable. But I think we could get rid of a lot of that if we,
we had more clarity and the guidelines that's set forth. So again my
comment would just be to Mr. Min. I hope Mr. Min this was something that
was talked about back in May 21 st of '99 and we're almost in May of 2001
so two years later. So we're hoping that you can come forward. I don't
know if it's appropriate for us to put any conditions about you. I think
that's a separate matter, but hopefully they'll, those guidelines come out or
specifically what you talk about this rule-making authority granted, uh,
drafting a rule which would specify the types and amounts of items
incidental to the ag, ag products which can be sold by an agriculture
product stand and still qualify the stand.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And the other comment, Mr. Chairman, is to
follow-up on what Ms. Johnson brought up. (chuckled) Would be
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interesting to see ice cream made right there in that place by milk
squeezed from the cows right over there (chuckled), uh, taro burgers. And
that was interesting she, she brought that up. But trying to expand on
those local products in keeping them in, in the spirit of what we're trying to
do in Keanae. And I, and I hope Ms. Hueu realizes that I think the reason
for all this question is because--and I won't speak for everybody, but I feel
that it's real important for all of us to keep side of what East Maui is all
about and what we're trying to protect and, and protect it from any type of
proliferation of things that we don't wanna see happen out there. So I
think that's the context that I'm coming in with some reservations and
some questions that I need answered. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And by way of clarification, Dain, that's why the last item
that we're bringing up today, many of those definitions were 30 years
overdue and we're trying to work on a lot of those. And when we brought
the ag bill and we discussed it for over two years, we still were not able to
come up with all of the definitions and the, um, fine lines as to what
needed to be done, what would be permitted, what wouldn't be permitted.
So we left that for future Councils to decide but, but what John has been
working on, um, there are many other items such as the SBR that we're
over 30 years sitting in committee that have not been worked on. So
that's why I'm bringing those up. Mike, you had a comment.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. I think Mr. Kane read
my mind with regards to local products. One comment for the Applicant.
We, you know, I really encourage you to use, for example, for your hot
dogs and your ice creams to promote the Maui-made products to our
visitors and locals alike 'cause I think it's a win-win situation for not only
your business but for also our other local businesses here in the County.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Are we ready for the question?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: One more comment, Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If I ... if I can ask Ms. Hueu a question because I
think Michael brings up a real interesting point and it just ... it almost
won't go one way or the other to force some sort of condition, but I'm
interested to hear what she has to say about a point that Mr. Molina
bring--and it's just one question and I won't expand on it. Just a simple
question.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'll allow you to.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Sandra.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Ms. Hueu you heard the comment by Mr. Molina
regarding made-on Maui products.
MS. HUEU: (chuckled) Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And is that something you're willing to consider?
don't think it's necessary or whether or not it is necessary at this time to
impose such a condition on you, but is that something you've been looking
at or you would consider?
MS. HUEU: Well, I've, uh ... I do consider it and I've, um ... I'm selling quite a
few things now that we have right on the property. Where you have the
paholei right by the backyard, uh ... we have the taro, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: But let me clarify. The items that you're asking for in
today's and specifically we're talking about the pre-cooked hot dogs and
hamburgers, ice cream and cold cut sandwiches.
MS. HUEU: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So I think the products that we're referring to in this
application-MS. HUEU: MauL
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --would you be able to consider looking at, you
know, Maui-made ice--I not going mention names-MS. HUEU: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --'cause I'm not here to advertise.
MS. HUEU: I even ... I've already contacted the taro burger guys so, you know,
I've done that much so far and I will consider Maui-made products,
definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman
for that.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. You welcome. Any further comments? If not, all in
favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

(ex. WN, CT)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.
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VOTE:

ACTION:

AYES:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Kawano, Molina, and Chair Arakawa.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Nishiki and Tavares.

ABSTAIN:

None.

FIRST READING of bill; as revised; and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much. Congratulations.

LU-28

REQUEST FROM FONG CONSTRUCTION COMPANY,
LTD. FOR A CONDITIONAL PERMIT (C.C. No. 99-223)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If all of you will now turn to land Use Committee item
number 28. That's the one in the other folder.
Item number 28, this is a request from Fong Construction Company, Ltd.,
for a Conditional Permit. The Planning Director transmitted County
Communication No. 99-223 and a proposed bill entitled "A Bill FOR AN
ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL PERMIT IN ORDER TO
OPERATE A CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL
PRIMARilY
FOR
BUSINESS
WITHIN
THE
BASEYARD
CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY WITHIN THE COUNTY AGRICULTURAL
DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY SITUATED IN WAIKAPU, MAUl". The
purpose of the proposed bill is to grant a Conditional Permit in order to
operate a baseyard facility primary for the construction industry of heavy
equipment and materials on 31.0 acres of land located in the County
Agricultural District. And that 31.0 I believe is being amended to
23--Roderick?--to 23 acres.
And Roderick will be making that
presentation when he gets here. Excuse me, one second. (pause) Okay,
thank you. I just had to make sure we still had a quorum. So at this point,
um, today the Committee will be considering whether to recommend
passage of the 23 acres that Roderick owns. This item by the way went
all the way through Council committee in the last term and ended up at the
Council, but was referred back because they couldn't meet the standard
showing five years of a lease condition. So what Mr. Fong has done is
he's taken out all of the areas that are leased and that are, um, that he
doesn't have a five-year lease for and he's now just taking the 23 acres
that he owns to pass through. But basically the entire item was passed
through by the last land Use Council meeting. Okay, Roderick.
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MR. FONG: Mr. Chairman and members of the Council, my name is Roderick
Fong, and I'm representing Fong Construction in which I've been applying
for this permits to operate construction baseyards in Waikapu since '92 of,
uh ... I mean since the '92 and which I've had a State Land Use Permits
for since '95.
Basically I sent a handout with a summary that I felt was, there's so many
paperwork involved, but I felt that was just a summary of some of the
things that pertains to the Conditional Use Permit for information that I
gathered. I don't believe you need to read everything. It's specific, and
some is, are just portions of, of information. But on the, uh ... I'm gonna
go over the letter, cover letter that I wrote and basically talk about those
items and maybe a few other items and then, um ... if there are any
questions you can ask me.
Dear Chairman Arakawa: Attached are highlighted documents in regards
to our Conditional Permit request. The first item was February 25th, 2001,
County Department of Planning letter about the Maui Planning
Commission's February 13, 2001 meeting, um ... recommending
approval to grant the transfer of permit from Fong Construction to
Consolidated Baseyards, LLC. This is ... from the beginning we, we had
it under Fong Construction, but just recently I just decide to separate it as
LLC, as the individual member LLC just to take it away from the
construction business itself that's, um, hasn't, you know, um, anything to
do with the permit itself. I bought 23 acres which is the TMK 3-8-07:89.
Portions of the 8 acres that makes up the 31 and 4 acres that I'm existing
on is, is part of 3 ... TMK 3-8-07:portions of 102 which is 43 acres total
with several other leaseholders or license holders and, and the owner
himself A&B Properties. Basically we sent a request in to transfer the
name under the name Consolidated Baseyards, LLC, which is like I said I
just, uh, LLC I created last year and, um, to use to purchase the property
and to place all the permits and information on there. This includes the
February 13th , 2001, Department of Planning memo report and my
November 16, 2000, letter request to Mr. English regarding this subject.
Number two, the second item was March 3rd , 2000, is my letter to the
County Planning Department requesting to clarify the business use under
my Special Use Permit and which I sent to Mr. Joe Alueta.
Number three is October 26, 1999, State Land Use Commission order
granting time extension to my Special Use Permit and it's just a portion of
it and the remaining was the Planning Commission's items which, which
was repeated.
Number four was the September 1995 State Land Use Commission
Finding of Fact, approving my Special Use Permit. That's the original
approval, State approval.
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And then number five was the original February 1994 Preliminary
Engineering Report which talks about the 20 acres, 23-acre site, uh,
including a 9th , a January 2001 Updated Central Facility Drawing that I, I
just draw out, um, a year or so ago and I, I just dated it 2001, but it
probably was drawn out about a year before that. And then it shows the
current changes as follows. I do have a well permit, approved well permit
and I'm currently drilling that well and just to use nonpotable water, water
for the fire protection system instead of the original use to use irrigation
water from HC&S's ditch nearby at, uh, near the sod farm, uh, B. is fuel
station that we always intended to put one, um ... when we built our first
construction baseyard we had a fuel station at our, at our original yard on
Dairy Road. But because of Maui Petroleum having a fuel station up at
the Waikapu, um ... I'm sorry. Up at C. Brewer's yard, we didn't feel that
that was necessary, but they recently closed that down. So we started
thinking that something is necessary for the users and ourselves in the
area. And that's all for the letters. Um ... are there any questions?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Roger? Okay, Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Fong, thank you. I was reviewing
some of the earlier files and I didn't notice that anything came up at the
committee meeting, but one of the comments made by State Historic
Preservation Division from DLNR mentioned the possible existence of
burial sites in the area and they recommended an archaeological survey
be done. Could you tell me if that was done and what the results were?
MR. FONG: That ... yes, that was done. The inventory and a monitoring
system was submitted. The inventory report by, uh ... I'm not sure the
company name. A ... something company name by lady with this Lisa.
And she has yet, there were comments back regarding the original
inventory report that she's probably a few weeks from re, responding,
returning it back to the State for approval, but mean while a monitoring,
um ... a monitoring plan was approved and we got a grading permit let's
say about four to six months ago and they were on site monitoring our
cut--we opened up about 10 acres and graded. Most of it is, um ... you
know up and down areas and she was there right through the monitoring
on the cut, uh, cut and fill areas. So they have a report that's, um, uh,
that's out.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so the report, still the final report is still
not in yet.
MR. FONG: The final report, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And on the second thing was there
a comment made within the text in some of the earlier materials
expressed concern about soil contamination or the possibility of
contamination from fuels. What program do you have in place to deal

was
that
soil
with
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potential soil contamination because I noticed there's also a statement
that says you have agricultural uses and there's horses and possibly other
grazing animals in the area and I wouldn't want them to be harmed by this.
MR. FONG: Right. That's part of the plan of this whole baseyard is to afford to
spend and deal with the environmental issues that comes up when, uh, in,
uh, construction type of yard. And basically I already designed washdown
area that's probably the best in the State as far as washing equipment and
washing ... recycling the water and putting in a, uh, oil water separators
in and sending it to a drainage area. And I know personally in my leases
and so forth they'll be annual monitoring done by, uh, environmental
consultant and they will submit basically their report and these
leaseholders would have to abide by and make the appropriate clean ups
and so forth for them to keep their leases, continue the leases. I plan to
and personally because I own the land too I plan to keep this property as,
as environmentally clean as, as I can for future uses.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, are you gonna be undergrounding your
fuel storage tanks or will they be above ground?
MR. FONG: Right now I got it designed above ground and I have no intent to put
it underground because of that situation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You have any further questions?
Planning Department comments on this project?

If not, Department?

MR. ALUETA: No. We just note that one, as he indicated, um, it was originally
31 acres. He's now reduced it so that the Conditional Permit would just
cover the 23 acres that he does own. We would note in his submittals
we--the Department has not transmitted up for your review or action the
transfer from Fong Construction to the Baseyards Limited site. That, as
indicated in his letter that just happened at the last Planning Commission
meeting. So we have not transmitted nor the minutes available. There
wasn't much discussion, but we haven't officially transmitted up anything
like that. The Department does have a video of the site not of the recent
gradings, but of the overall site if they're interested in that.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Would you like to see the video? Why don't you play the
video, Joe.
(pause)
MR. ALUETA: (videotape presentation) This is looking at the existing 4-acre
property, uh, the existing 4-acre property that's not before you today, but
this is to the west of the 31-acre site. This shows this is the old access
road to the Maui dump, the Waika ... the old Waikapu site. Across that
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you have the feed lot and within a section of Waiko
Road ... (pause) ... to the south-west is active ago This is looking down
Waiko Road. (pause) This is looking at the boundary of the, this is where
the 31-acre site. This all ag in, uh, I was just at the site the other day and
this has all been cleared as mentioned by Mr. Fong that he's graded and
grubbed. The original 31-acre site basically went all the way down to the
intersection with the highway. This more looking toward the highway side
and I'm looking back up Waiko Road and you can see trucks coming up or
coming down toward the highway. This is intersection with the highway.
You can see, uh ... on this corner there's an existing orchid farm. So
again looking back up Waiko Road. This, this is a good shot of the
intersection and the existing turn movements.
There were some
improvements done to Kuihelani Highway.
There's a right turn
deceleration lane as you see existing trucks turning in and there's also a
right turn acceleration lane. This is it. (pause) And that's pretty much it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, thank you very much. Any questions for Joe?
Everybody pretty much knows where the site is? It's on Waiko Road. As
you're going up there there's an area that's already partially cleared. Riki,
you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just, just a few, please, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
So Mr. Min what is being asked of this
Committee today under existing code is a Conditional Permit request for
the 23 acres owned by Mr. Fong.
MR. MIN: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And, and since we're doing this process and we
have the nontransferable clause, am I assuming that we are,
uh ... entertaining a request by the Limited, the LLC and not Fong
Construction? I would hate for see him to go through another process just
to change the name that we're considering today. So I don't know what is
the official before, before the Committee whether it's Fong Construction or
the new entity.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: In other words, John, what was permitted by the Planning
Commission, what is the name of the entity that Roderick is actually
asking to go under since he changed the name?
MR. MIN: Relative to the requests that's before you today the applicant is Fong
Construction Company, Limited, okay. Now at the February 13th meeting
of the Planning Commission, that was its last meeting, the Commission
did review a request to transfer this Conditional Permit to Consolidated
Baseyards, LLC, and the Planning Commission is recommending
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approval, okay. There was no discuss ... there was very little discussion
by the Commission. There was no testimony in opposition to the request.
However that will be transmitted to the Council.
CHAIR ARAKAWA:
Okay, but it will be transmitted under Consolidated
Baseyards, LLC.
MR. MIN: That is correct.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. And that is the name that we are using today, Riki.
That answers your question?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I, I just don't want us to duplicate a
process that we can avoid if, if possible for fulfilling all our requirements.
Mr. Moto you understand what I'm trying to get at?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Brian as ... could you speak to the legality ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: As our legal ...
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, yes, uh ... if I may summarize. I think Mr. Hokama
is, wants to avoid the complication of having a review and action taken
possibly on the Conditional Permit itself and then have a separate action
on the matter of the transfer from one entity to another. During the video
we were discussing amongst ourselves this very issue.
Let me state that the matter of the transfer, which as Mr. Min has stated,
has just been reviewed by the Planning Commission, is gonna be
transferred regardless to the Council and that's because the matter of the
transfer affects more than just the 23 acres. So there are other parcels as
you know that are involved.
The one concern that your staff and I had to consider, however, was the
agenda posting for today which, uh, uh, unfortunately just simply
references Fong Construction Company and does not disclose the
possibility of there being another entity that will be granted this permit.
Possibly had we known beforehand, before the agenda was posted that
we would be facing this situation that we are today, we could've provided
better notice and that's the part that makes me uncomfortable to be frank
that, urn ... although it would make sense to draft a bill, a Conditional
Permit bill that reference specifically Consolidated Baseyards LLC and
therefore accomplish two things in one. Unfortunately the agenda posted
today does not reflect that possibility. So I would-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Brian. Let me, let me interject here.
MR. MOTO: Yeah.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Would you be more comfortable if we deferred this item, put
the proper name on it and bring it up at the next meeting for passage?
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, yes, that would be, that is a good idea, that's one
way of handling this matter.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. That way it'll be very clean. The debate on the
discussion on the topic, the things under the topic however is basically the
same. So what we will be doing is we will defer this item. We'll post with
the proper name on it to make sure that everything is clear and legal, and
at the next meeting we'll put it on the agenda in the correct way so we
don't have to worry about the legalities of what we're doing, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain, you have a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Uh, yeah. Mr. Chairman, I heard Mr. Moto say that
that is one option that we can consider and he commented that that was a
good option. However, before we take any type of action whether it is to
defer or otherwise, we should first see if there are other options that are
available that may be considered an appropriate action for today. And,
and I, again, because of the comment made by Corp. Counsel, I just
wanted to get a clarification that we should be given the opportunity to
look at a variety of options before we take any type of action.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We can look at other options. I just wanna make sure that
we err on the side of correctness and-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, and I, I agree, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Because of the ruling that we had from Corp. Counsel as far
as posting I wanna make absolutely sure that there no complications. My
preference would be to try and work on this and get out today obviously,
but we'll ask Mr. Moto if there's any way that legally we can make sure we
follow all the requirements. If not what we will do is just defer the vote on
this. Okay, Brian.
MR. MOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, Mr. Chairman, uh, the, uh, alternative
would be to treat the matter of the Conditional Permit for the applicant as
posted Fong Construction Company, Limited, as one matter; and then
treat the transfer as a separate matter when it is transmitted at some point
by the Planning Department. You basically you have to be taking action
on two separate matters that together would accomplish what Mr. Fong is
requesting.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Moto, if I may ask. If we are, they have changed the
name legally and they have run that through the Planning Commission, is
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the existing name and the entity still surviving? I mean are we passing
today something that doesn't exist anymore? That's my question.
MR. MOTO: Uh, Mr. Chairman, to clarify, Fong Construction Company, Limited,
is still in existence. What they, they didn't dissolve one entity and create
another one. Instead they created a new LLC, Limited Liability Company.
I assume it's under the same ownership or I don't know. I don't have that
information in front of me. But they, what they did was to transfer the
permit or, or apply for a transfer of the existing permits from Fong
Construction to the new entity. Both are in existence.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So you're saying we can pass this today? Would we still
have to meet on the same item with the different name on it at the next
meeting and pass that also? So would we, would we accomplish anything
more by passing it today? Brian.
MR. MOTO: Would we be accomplishing anything more by passing today? Not
in the sense of ... I mean you still, you still would be driving presumably
toward the same goal which is I assume would be to have a Conditional
Permit issued in the name of Consolidated Baseyards. '
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right.
MR. MOTO: If you were to report out the agenda bill today, you'd have to also
take action at some later date on a separate measure to approve the
transfer from Fong to Consolidated Baseyards.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So from a, from a practical standpoint, we really wouldn't
gain much time?
MR. MOTO: I ... you know I really don't know how much time. I'm not capable
of giving you an estimate of what the time-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. What, what I'm gonna ask, Brian, I'm gonna take a
five minute recess. I'm gonna ask you to talk to Roderick and make sure
the grounds that he's working on on the names how that works, okay. So
during this break why don't you do that because we've been meeting for
almost two hours anyway so it's time--or hour and half anyway. So it's
time for us to take a break anyway. So I'm gonna do that. I'm gonna call
a five minute recess and take advantage of the time you talk to Fong.
Recess five minutes. (gavel)
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:55 p.m.
3:05 p.m.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Call the Land Use Committee back to order. At this time,
Brian, would you explain what you discovered.
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MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, thank you for the recess. During the recess, Mr.
Chairman, we had opportunity, I had opportunity to discuss this matter
with Mr. Fong. And I believe we are in agreement that a deferral would be
best.. Our understanding, Mr. Chairman, that it will in the next two weeks
it would make, it would be possible to reschedule this matter, and for the
Planning Department to forward up the documents relating to the transfer.
The deferral will allow the matter of the transfer to be settled together with
the agenda item dealing today with the Conditional Permit.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, thank you very much. Mr. Fong we apologize we
couldn't work on this today, but I think because of the change of name and
because of what's coming up, we will schedule this for two weeks from
today. So we will bring it back and at that time all the paperwork will be
cleaned and according to our rules so there'd be no questions as to the
legalities of it. So if you don't mind I'm going to without any objections
defer the item. Jo Anne, you have a question first.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just, just one. Oh, okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: There was just only one point and it was just
that I hope that Mr. Fong also at that meeting has available the final HSPD
report of archaeological findings.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. If you can try and get that. Okay, any objections to
deferral of this item?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICE NO OBJECTIONS. (ex. WN, CT)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further comments? Pat, you look like you might wanna
comment.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Well, yeah, Mr. Chairman. First of all, I was gonna
object to the move that you were doing, but if the applicant is agreeable to
the ... I can go along with it because I can see where this has been a
long process for the Fong family and I just felt well, because of ... to
make it cleaner I think it's the best way to go. And if Mr. Fong agree to
that matter, Mr. Chairman, during the recess, I have no problem in
supporting the ... your, your move as far as that goes, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Yes and, you know, this has been an item that
the Fong's have followed for many, many months and it's been a long
process for them and I realize that the Land Use Committee last brought
this up in November and it's been deferred to this point, but the reason for
doing this is to just make it cleaner and we will bring it up on the next
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Committee meeting and Mr. Fong is agreeable with that. So with that we
will defer the item.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.
ACTION:

DEFER

LU-20

LAND-USE AND ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF CRUISE SHIP
INDUSTRY (C.C. No. 01-77)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We'll now move onto Land Use item number 20. Land Use
item number 20, um, has to do with the economic impacts of the cruise
ship industry. The Committee Chair transmitted County Community No.
01-77, relating to State and County efforts to maximize the benefits and
minimize the negative impacts of Hawaii's burgeoning cruise ship industry.
Very basically today, all I'm doing is introducing the topic and Dave you'll
go over some of the things that we'll be looking at as we discuss this
industry. We're not gonna be trying to pass anything nor we're gonna be
having any extensive discussion on it. Basically this is just a quick
refresher to explain the industry. David.
MR. RAATZ: (PowerPoint presentation) Thank you, Mr. Chair. For the record
this is David Raatz with the Committee staff, and we just have a few
pieces of background information for the Committee regarding the cruise
ship industry.
This is a quote from Governor Cayetano's website. "The cruise industry is
one of the most dramatic growth areas in tourism. Studies peg the
industry's total impact to the State's economy in 1998 at $304 million. By
2004 is it, it is expected to balloon to $1.4 billion."
This is a quote from Island Business Magazine in December. "Cruise-ship
business is booming in Hawaii - it's a $125 million industry expected to
double in capacity next year. But the state's harbors may not be up to this
ocean-borne bonanza."
The Association is requesting that the State take action to approve the
port facilities throughout the state.
In recognition of the industry concerns, there's currently a bill moving
through the Legislature (SB 756, SD1). A recent committee report states
the following:
"Your Committee recognizes the importance of the
passenger cruise ship industry in generating revenues for the State. Your
committee also understands that many harbor facilities in Hawaii are in
dire need of repair, maintenance, and additional construction."
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"Without state financial assistance to construct and repair harbor facilities,
the carriers themselves would have to finance that task and would likely
pass those costs on to consumers. Such an approach may ultimately
harm the industry and the revenues it generates. Your Committee finds
that a better approach is to earmark state funds for this purpose for a
limited time, as proposed by this measure."
Along with all the economic activities, there are some concerns that have
been raised regarding the cruise ship industry including concerns about
pollution. The New York Times last year reported that cruise ships were
involved in 87 confirmed cases of illegal discharges of oil, chemicals,
garbage or plastic from 1993 through 1988 or 1998. Excuse me, that's a
typo. What's more, some cases involved illegal discharges numbering in
the one hundreds, in the hundreds.
Then a report just last week from the Miami Daily Business Review. NCL
Holdings has been included in an investigation by federal prosecutors in
Florida of pollution by the cruise ship industry. NCL is the parent company
of Norwegian Cruise Line. NCL Holdings said it has voluntarily reported to
federal authorities that an internal investigation found a pattern of
violations of environmental law on several of its ships ... NCL operates
eight ships with ports of call in ... Hawaii and elsewhere.
And again an article from the San Diego Union-Tribune from March of
1999, details concerns about possible environmental violations and
falsified records from Royal Caribbean Cruises which is also operated in
Hawaii.
Other concerns relating to the burgeoning industry are passenger and
crew safety; the effect on existing hotels and other visitor attractions; the
lack of the County control over harbors because it's a matter of primarily a
State jurisdiction; special concerns for the harbor in Molokai which is one
of the nine State harbors, but may not have the tourism infrastructure
necessary for the industry; and possible demand for expensive County
investments to address possible new infrastructural needs with the
burgeoning cruise ship industry.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, David. So very basically what David has gone
over are some of the things and issues that will be coming up in the cruise
ship industry. And what the Chair is going to be doing at this point is
starting to meet with people and trying to look at some of the concerns
and some of the areas that we need to look at in the industry. We're not
prepared today to go into any details. That was not the intent of bringing it
to the agenda, but rather to expose it to the Committee. And if there are
anyone is on the, anyone on this Committee has a specific area that they
would like to look at, they would like this Committee to look at or to
address, then we'd be happy to look at those items. We do need to meet
with the appropriate agencies that are involved in the cruise industry. We
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haven't started that process yet as well as talk to any of the other
agencies within the State and in private sector that are dealing with this
industry to get a better grasp of what is there, what is available. So this is
the opening presentation just to make everyone aware that this is a topic
we will be dealing with and that the Chair is very much open to being able
to bring up this issue in whatever form to this Committee. One of the
major concerns that I have is Kaunakakai Harbor and being able to
perhaps take two cruises to Kaunakakai to Molokai to develop their
economic industry there. At this point, if we have any questions or
comments, we start with Bob since you had your hand up first.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. One of the things that
perhaps could be looked into between now and the next time we meet is a
disembarkation fee. I was talking to Councilmember Johnson who where
she was before is a common practice and it's a common practice
throughout the world to help mitigate the impact of ships coming inside
and to see if the County can initiate this and what the fee should be.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We can look at it, but we also have to look at it in
conjunction with what the State authority gives us. It may be something
that the State will regulate and that the County doesn't have the authority
to do, but we will look into it-COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yeah, that's what I wanna find out-CHAIR ARAKAWA: --and find out.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --if we can or if it's just State.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. David, you have that? Okay, Jo Anne you had a
comment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The other area and this would apropos of
environmental concerns. The thing that I'm very concerned about is the
importation of alien pests that are often contained in the ballast water of
cruise ships. And when they discharge ballast water, which they're not
suppose to do, it can really devastate an entire ecosystem. And I know
that when we have particularly the QEII and ships that are foreign ported,
they do take on water in other ports and mollusks or other invasive
species can come in and we may never know it and it could destroy our
whole reef system. So that's something very serious that we need to
address.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And thank you. And that's one of the reasons we're looking
at this item. As you notice it's the positive and negative economic
impacts. So we're very concerned that we're not spending enough time
looking at this and it is something that is here that is a growing industry
that we really need to look at what the cause and effects are gonna be.
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So your concerns are very much taken into advisement and we will be
looking at this area.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The other thing too that I had, Alan, was that
when I had an opportunity to speak with Governor Knowles when they
recently came here from the Pew Commission, they are developing
regulations in the State of Alaska because they have had such severe
environmental damage and a lot of the issues that we're dealing with on
the problem side have cropped up. So they are in the process of actually
more closely regulating the industry so we actually will be in touch with the
people on his staff to see if we can get some guidelines of where they're
headed with their draft legislation. So we would be if it's (change of
tape) or if it is something that we can impose locally we would be doing
that. So we would be separate whether it was State or whether it was
County. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much. And I'd also like to thank you for all
the information you submitted to this point. It's in the binders for
everybody to read, but then more information and the better information
we get the better we can analyze what we need to do in this area. Dain,
you had a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, after
looking at what you have listed on the agenda as well as what you've
presented thus far, my issue tends to be jurisdictional. And it seems that
because we're dealing with an industry that primarily impacts or has,
uh ... almost a ... almost an exclusive authority at this point with
between the State and the industry itself, it seems premature for this
subject matter to be in the Land Use Committee. And the reason I bring
that up is for one reason primarily and you haven't read it yet, but on your
background information on the cruise ships issue, uh, cruise ship industry
on Land Use 20, issues before the Committee, uh, you stated that what
role does the County have in maximizing the benefits and minimizing the
negative impacts of the cruise industry, and should the County's role
include land initiatives and economic development investments. I think
the discussion that we're attempting to partake in this initial meeting and
what you as the Chair see as future discussion, I think the discussion
should be taken place in a general matter which would be appropriate in
the government relations committee. And the reason I say that again is
because we're dealing with general concepts and there has never been at
this point from my understanding a determination of what the County's role
will be regarding the cruise ship industry. And that discussion I think is
premature in this particular Committee because we have not yet
established and if we have, then the Chair needs to show me that
established, uh ... policies that we've come up with to determine how
we're gonna take on this particular industry whether it's gonna be the
aspects that were brought up by some of my colleagues has yet to be
determined in my mind. I think, Mr. Chairman, and with all due respect to
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you and your, um ... your zeal to take on this particular item, I think it's
commendable. However, I would ask you to consider and perhaps not
today, but I would ask you and the Members to reconsider where this
belongs. I think it belongs in the government relations committee. I think
it's important that when we talk about general policy regarding this
particular industry, I think the appropriate placement would be in the
Committee of the Whole. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, thank you very much for your comments. And again,
when I took this Committee Chairmanship, this was, these were one of the
items that I had intended to discuss and I could've done it in the basis of
economic development. But per our agreements, this item was put in my
Committee. At this point, your major point is very well taken. There's
been very little discussion in this area. And what the Chair intends to do
with this is create the discussion so we can decide where, what we need
to do in this area. And until we have some exploration of the topic, until
we are able to research it properly and find out what the intent and what
the needs are within this community, it's not being done and this Chair is
going to be doing that. That is, that is what my intent is. And if at some
point we find topics that are appropriate to be shifted to other committee's,
we will absolutely do that. But borrowing that as introduction to this area,
the Chair is going to be looking at what needs to be done, what needs to
be discussed, and we'll start off here and we will refer to any committee
that is appropriate at the time that we come up with the issues.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman, if I may.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and my comment would be it seems as
though we're putting the cart before the horse. And the reason I say that
is because we have not yet determined whether or not this discussion
would take place in the Land Use Committee because we haven't
determined that this is a land use issue. This seems like it would be an
issue of policy--well, an administrative policy or administrating policies and
then from there determining what or what appropriate committee would
take on what a committee would discuss. And at this time it seems like
we're in a committee that really doesn't have any--it doesn't have any
basis to be in this committee and that's what I'm trying to say. And again
it's nothing--it's not on a personal level. I'm just trying to put forward, Mr.
Chairman, what I think as an individual Council member what is right and
what, what I think is right and that I ask my committee, uh, my colleagues
in this committee to consider is that the basis of this discussion should
take place in the appropriate committee and that is when you talk about
general policy that should take place in governmental affairs which is
falling under the umbrella of the Committee of the Whole. Keep in mind
that we're discussing matters that will be relating to the State and how the
State deals with the various issues that were brought up by Mr. Raatz in
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the presentation. And if you notice there was no indication of specific land
use issues that the County has yet established, but the, the crux of this
discussion is evolve, revolving around how the State is gonna be working
to figure out the infrastructure and the various aspects between the
industry and the State, and that is something that I think is more
appropriate, um, more appropriate discussed in a government relations
type of setting. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Kane, you're welcome to take an issue similar to this
and put it in your committee if you choose to. I've decided to-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That would be duplication, Mr. Chairman.
would yield to you doing that--

So I

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I've decided to put it in this Committee and it was assigned
to this Committee. So I will be doing the appropriate work because this is
an area that I was very interested in. If anybody else had been interested
in this issue, they could very well have brought up any time prior to this.
This is an area that I have grave concern about and I want to discuss it,
discuss it in as is item in our Committee we'll be discussing it as an item in
our Committee. Jo Anne then Pat.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I have a little different view in terms of
land use because I do agree with the Chair that it does dramatically affect
land use. Lahaina, for example, is being definitely impacted from a land
base. We had a huge discussion about the very issues that will eventually
be coming up on this subject because many of the people express
concern that Lahaina was looked at not so much as a destination
anymore, but as a terminal. And the impact of cruise ships coming in to
the harbor and then landing when you have let's say several thousand
people coming into town, our infrastructure on land is really incapable at
this point of handling huge numbers of people. So for me even though
it's ... let's sayan ocean-going issue and it involves State regulation, I
think that if we don't address the impacts on land, I think we're headed
down a very dangerous road. So I would agree that it does belong in
Land Use because it is having some serious impacts particularly on
Lahaina. And I know that it is going to continue. We are very concerned
about the numbers of people coming in. It's been discussed in our West
The LahainaTown Action
Maui Chamber of Commerce already.
Committee is very concerned about this issue. Lahaina Restoration
Foundation ... but they're all concerned with it more or less on the land
impacts as oppose to what is actually happening out in the ocean. So
that's another concern, but that's just another perspective. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, thank you. Pat.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Johnson brings up a
good point because when this first came up to the Council we looked at it
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that way and believe it or not it wasn't between Land Use or COW. It was
looking at Bob ... Bob's committee here and it was a choice, but I'm glad
to hear what you're saying and this is not the first time that anything, you
know, that items go to a certain committee--and Mr. Kane do bring up
good points--and then we find out this is in the wrong committee. At that
time we would switch and take it back to the committee that would best
serve the issue with all the information that the committee had picked up.
So, you know, as Mr. Kane mentioned it is not wrong, but I thank you for
your comment, Mr. Chairman, because you can bring it up but then as
soon as we find out that and as we get deeper into this we're gonna find
out hey, this is not the right committee, and at that time we can still push it
on to the proper committee. But as I say when it first came to the Council,
when we looked at it we thought it should go to Bob's committee, Human
Service, but then this one have so many different issues, Mr. Chairman,
and the most important thing I think is ... we need to see this--Bob felt the
same way that I felt that it should go to a 9-member committee and then
look at it. But as you said, you, you mentioned it and you hit on the head
that if it's on Land Use, if it's not Land Use it'll go to COW whichever
committee may need to go. So I can live with that, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And in the past, Pat, we have split issues and we have
looked at things that have far reaching affects in many different
committees. Quite frankly a lot of the areas overlapped. And when the
areas are split up where the issues become so large that we have to look
at it from a lot of different ways, then more than one committee may be
appropriate to meet and to discuss this. And basically all I'm doing is
taking this up as introductory. We'll find out where and what needs to be
discussed. I'm not zeroing in on anyone point on this at this point. I'm
asking for general discussion. Once we zero in on what needs to be
discussed, what's out there, what the concerns are, then we can defer
those aspects to whatever committee wants them. And I have no
objections to doing that, but the work needs to start some place and we
need to be able to do the analysis to find out where we need to do it and
that's what we're doing here. And which is why I'm keeping it very broad
and I'm saying give me all of your suggestions. I have a lot of concerns in
how we're gonna be dealing with this, with this item. For instance in the
Wailuku revitalization if we should be looking at that or some other area
within our community where land use decisions will become very prevalent
in how we make our decision-making and how we do the planning of our
community.
So it might be better suited in Planning Committee.
Economic Development, it's definitely economic development in
relationship and Human Services will have a lot to do with it when we start
dealing with different things. So the intent again is to bring up the issue,
start looking at it because nobody up to this point has really done any
thorough investigation and discussion on this issue. And it's something
that is gonna affect our community very long term and is very broad based
item. If we don't start looking at this item now, when the ships are here,
they're ported and we don't have the infrastructure set up and we haven't
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done the consideration we should have, this community will be in a lot of
trouble. And we may not be able to take advantage of the situations best
we could and we may be inundated by things that we should've been
considering. So this is an exploratory and I know that it is not something
that is unique to only one committee. It would be--have items for all,
almost all committees at some point, but we will start it here. And any
suggestions and any Chairman that want to take aspects of it that feel it is
important enough to put in their committee, you're welcome to do that.
We've done before in Council where we've taken items and we split them.
So I think I made the point and we've had the discussion today. Anyone
who wants to bring up any further discussion along this line, please steer
the direction toward their committee and we will start working on those
items and we will then do the preliminary work. Okay. Any further
discussion? If not, with no objection we will defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICE NO OBJECTIONS. (ex. WN, CT)
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Riki. Discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, thank you. Today we have no
one testifying on this item, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No, we have no one signed up to testify.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Then one suggestion prior to the next meeting
that you will schedule if we could have a, uh ... the appropriate people or
agencies consider presenting a status of what we do have as far as
facilities and infrastructure, what level are we geared to provide that
service to. And as we know of planned projections, you know, we'd like to
know exactly what it takes to reach the next, the next level. What is being
considering for public financing and what the private sector is planning to
do for their own enhancement and profitability.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, that's an area we'll start with. We're gonna have to do
a lot of exploration in this area because we really don't know. But if you
have suggestion as to who you would like to see, what agency you'd like
to see, we'll welcome that and we'll try to invite them. This is gonna be
something that's gonna take years to work through I'm pretty sure. It's not
gonna be an item that's gonna be a one meeting or two meeting type item.
And we'll try and get the appropriate committee representatives to the
committee, whoever you feel is necessary to have discussions. That's
why we're introducing this as a very broad topic. If you're interested in
what the State agencies deal with, uh, the Harbors Division perhaps what
their plans are, I can tell you that they do have plans for the expansion of
Kahului Harbor. We've worked on this probably five years ago when I was
Chair of the Parks Committee. So this is something that, the topic has
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been there a long time. It's just that I have not seen a concentrated effort
to try and deal with this. And now I'm trying to focus effort that we just
need to deal with it. Okay. So we'll bring in whatever ... if you have any
suggestions just forward it to our committee, who you want to see, how
you want to see these items developed and we'd be happy to work in
some of those directions.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'd appreciate it, Mr. Chairman. I just believe
that part of your, your comments to us as your committee is that we have
an opportunity, uh ... I assume there's some time sensitivity, whatever it
really is since there an inference that we may be missing out on some
thing if we don't capitalize on it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We know for sure there are some new ships that are coming
in. We know for sure that we're gonna have to do harbor improvements
and we know within a relative certainty that there's probably not enough
money to do everything. So we're gonna have to start focusing on some
of these items as to what we can do and it may be part of our HSAC
package or County package to the State Legislature in the future how we
want to ask them for funding. So those things will all come into play in due
time I'm sure, um ... exactly how to nail it down right now we can't do it
because we just haven't spent enough time concentrating on this area.
So that's, so that's what I'm suggesting we need to do. We'll bring in
whoever you need and whoever you want to look at. The concerns Jo
Anne brought up, the concerns you're bringing up, and they all need to be
discussed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And all I want to do is provide the opportunity to be able to
start those discussions.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Anybody else wanna comment on this before we
defer the item? Okay. If not, the item is deferred.

ACTION:

DEFER

LU-19

LAND-USE DEFINITIONS (c.c. No. 01-63)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We'll go to Land Use item number 19. This is land-use
definitions. By way of description, the Committee Chair transmitted
through, transmitted County Communication No. 01-63, relating to the
need of more precise land-use definitions and the copy of the County

LU 02126101

Page 41

Communication No. 96-246 from the former Planning Director, transmitting
a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 19,
MAUl COUNTY CODE, TO ESTABLISH A SERVICE BUSINESS
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT". The purpose of the proposed bill is to create a
Service Business Residential or "SBR" zoning district, corresponding to
the SBR designation in several community plans. In addition to SBR,
"open space" and other land-use definitions may be considered with
respect to this item.
By way of introductory to this item, in former Council when I was on the
Council we started looking at land use. There were many areas or
definitions that were not done. When the zoning ordinances were past in
the '60s, a lot of the land was not appropriately zoned because they had
no zoning definitions for them. So they were left in Interim and the idea in
putting them in Interim was that at some future date some future Council
or representative body would start doing the definitions so that we can
actually have these zoning. SBR is one of those type of zonings. Now
there are SBR designations within the community plan that already exist,
but there is no definition for SBR. So anyone who has a SBR definition
can't do anything with that property as defined so they have to go through
the whole process of redesignating what it is. So what we want to do is
we want to start visiting a whole list of these items. And the bill that is
before you, the Land Use bill that was in the binder, basically what we did
was we started dissecting those items. For instance bed and breakfast
was part of a, part of that bill and we took that bed and breakfast one part
of it, we left out the inn's, we left out the home occupation, we left out the
SBR and a lot of what's in there. And what the Chair intends to do with
this item is to go one item at a time, do the appropriate discussions for
those items to try and create the definitions for those items. And again,
this is a project that was left behind over 30 years ago that was started in
the zoning process, but was never completed. So the Chair is going to be
attempting to try and complete some of the work that past Council's failed
to do. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: In reference to your January 26 letter to Chair
Kawano and the Members of the Council regarding land-definitions.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And I'm looking at Land Use 19 on the agenda
relating to the need for more precise land-use definitions. I need
clarification from you, Mr. Chairman, because what I see on the agenda
versus what you just said it seems like there's a difference in what we're
gonna be, uh, what you're proposing to discuss, and let me clarify that real
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quickly. The transmission of the County Communication relates to the
need for more precise land-use definitions and you stated in your prior
comments that there's an absence of definitions.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Some-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can you clarify?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Sure. In the community plan, for instance, SBR is noted but
there is no substance, there's no definition behind it. So because it's
noted it's something that's there and we need to now clarify it and define it
with, with verbiage so that it actually has some practical application.
That's what the Chair intends to do. These are things that, uh, for
instance SBR I believe has already gone before the Planning Commission
and ... on the different islands and has reviewed. So this is not a new
item. This is an item that already existed for quite some time that the
Planning Department has been making great strides to try and redefine
some of these and to put precise definitions on, as in this case, just a title
which is SBR. Now it's been, um ... people, people have been given
some kind of definition to it when they discuss it, but until this Council
determines what that exact definition is, there is no true definition to it. It's
just what is perceived to be a definition and there's nothing written on it.
So that perception is more verbal because it's now official. You know the
department can say this is what it is, but unless you have a written
approved definition all it is is a assumption that this is what they believe it
should be. What we're gonna try and attempt is take some of these
leftover items and now try and clarify those definitions and that's what I
intend to do.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for that.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's what I mean (inaudible)
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And if I may continue, is it the intent of the Chair to
pass out this particular bill that you've attached to the County
Communication, is it your intention to pass this particular bill out?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. My, my intention, this is what was passed to us this,
this was what had, was in previous committee's. So what we're intending
to do now is we're now trying to resurrect them. This is what the Planning
Department circulated to the Planning Commissions. Our job now is to try
and define what the actual language should be. What is here probably will
not, uh, vaguely resemble what the final product is 'cause it was kind of
mashed together in the original bill as one bill. And what we did with the
agricultural bill for instance and with the bed and breakfast bill was we
separated that from the original bill, and that is my intent to separate these
items one at a time, have complete discussion on them, make sure that
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what we want is clearly defined and becomes now an ordinance with a
clear definition.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chairman. And what I'm trying to do is
I'm just trying to create some parameters for me to be able to operate with
this discussion. So there's just a few ambiguities that I'd like to clear up
before you proceed if that's okay with you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. From my understanding and you've
noted in your, in your memo that this particular bill was actually filed. Is
that correct? Was it filed back in 1998?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes. Previous committee's have filed this.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So your intention is to revive this particular bill?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: My intention is to bring up the topic which was previously
being discussed. And in the '98 Council when we were there, again we
segregated parts of this bill. So we discussed things like the ag, we
discussed things like the bed and breakfast. The rest of it which we didn't
get to some future Chairman did file, but the intent of the Council at that
time and the Chairman of that time was to continue looking at these
definitions and to develop them out slowly.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
I'm just trying to understand your intent, Mr.
Chairman, and I apologize if I, I appear long-winded on this, but I'm, again,
referring to your, to your memo that you wrote. It seems like and if you
can please correct me if I'm wrong, it seems like you've acknowledged
that this particular bill for an ordinance amending Title 19 was filed back in
1998. However, your proposal is that the bill be considered as a useful
starting point for deliberations on the subject of, uh ... the subject of
creating a more precise ... or creating more precise definitions in the
Maui County Code. Am I correct in ...
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You're-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: In other words the context of this bill, Mr. Chairman,
the way I see it written here is that the bill died. It got filed. And yet you're
using this bill for us to look at, using this bill as a tool for us to create more
precise definitions in the County Code. Am I correct in, urn ...
CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: And again this ... much of this is being generated for
instance from the topic we discussed this morning--why is there not a
more precise definition in agriculture on ... you know what the limits are
for fruit stands. Most of this was never discussed in committee and it was
filed by the chairman without the discussion. Many of these items were
actually gone through by the Planning Commission where they've actually
had time to discuss it and you'll find there been much discussion on it, uh,
relevant information was passed on, but the Planning Chairman never had
time to really get into the item. So I'm reviving those items that were
there. I guess part of the policy of whoever was the last Planning Chair
was if he didn't discuss it, it didn't look like we were gonna discuss it, we
filed it, and bring it up at a later date. So I'm just bringing it up at a later
date. The information I'm bringing up are things that were passed on by
other committees and was not really discussed within this body.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So, Mr. Chairman, again, we're not looking at
this bill to pass out this bill. We're looking at this bill as a vehicle for us to
create more precise definitions in the County Code. And the reason why I
bring that up is because-CHAIR ARAKAWA: The answer is yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. And so if in fact that's the case, uh ... then
I--well, I wanted to make sure of that because the intent is not to pass this
bill out because if that's the case-CHAIR ARAKAWA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --then I would ask Corporation Counsel well, did we
just circumvent all of the process of having it reviewed by all the
appropriate agencies prior to even getting it to us?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No.
discuss the topics.

No.

The, the intent is not to pass this bill, but to

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And the reason I say that is because in your agenda
it has right there in the description the purpose of the proposed bill. Well,
this is not a proposed bill. This is being used--in other words the context
by which you've described it in the agenda is that this is in fact a proposed
bill that we're here to consider, and I just wanted to bring that up because
it seems like-CHAIR ARAKAWA: I won't argue with semantics with you. If that's, if I wrote it
wrong then-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, no.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: --we wrote it wrong, but that's my intent.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No. And that's not my point. I'm just trying to
understand so I can proceed with this in the right frame of mind, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm not accusing anybody of anything as far as
semantics or whatever else. I'm trying to understand what the basis of the
discussion will be and so my understanding is that we're not looking at a
bill to move.
We're looking at it as a vehicle for us to discuss
creating, uh ...
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Creating the bill.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... well, excuse me, creating more--in your words
more precise definitions to the County Code.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further discussion? Okay, Planning Department. John,
you wanna get into this?
MR. MIN: Just as a general comment. I think the, the intent of the Chair to
establish zoning regulations to implement the various land use categories
in the community plan is something worth pursuing.
The two areas that come to mind are Service Business Residential,
because this has come up as an issue where a property owner has
wanted to establish that zoning in the past and we don't have a
comparable zoning classification.
So I think it is worth pursuing
establishment of that particular district. The community plan areas that
are particularly affected include Wailuku-Kahului and Hana.
The second comment I have is the other key zoning classifications that
needs to be established is the Open Space district. We have quite a bit of
lands in all of the community plan districts that are designated Open
Space, but we do not have a corresponding zoning district with regulations
for, for Open Space. So those are the two key areas that come to mind.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, any questions for the department?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Dain.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Mr. Min, did you have any say in using
the Service Business Residential district amendment bill? The vehicle that
we're using to create more precise definition in the County Code did you
have any thing to do with using this particular bill for that reason?
MR. MIN: Actually this bill was, was prepared and was drafted and processed,
you know, well before you know I came on board. This was back in 1996.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: For the sake of this meeting today, I mean is this
something that, that you communicate with the Chair as far as using this
as the vehicle to create this more precise definitions?
MR. MIN: Yeah. You know we've had a chance to look at this bill and, you
know, this was a bill that was forwarded to the Council by the department.
And I think for the most part it's a good starting point, um ... you know,
that's my own personal opinion.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and I appreciate that.
MR. MIN: And, um ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: But my question would be wouldn't it be more
appropriate for us to use something that is law versus something that is
only a proposal? In other words in this case as far as creating more
precise language, we're using only a proposal that hasn't gone through
the full scrutiny and hasn't been signed into law. Instead we're using
something that went through a series of processes, but never made it to
the end. It never got to the finish line so to speak, and yet this Committee
today is considering using that vehicle, which in my mind I would call it a
failed vehicle because it hasn't reached the finish line, in determining what
we need to do creating new language or new definitions or things of that
nature without having something that exist.
For example, Mr. Chairman, there are other examples that we could've
considered that are existing laws that amendments that were made to
existing County Codes, um, that were made were put into law and then
now I can, I could cite as one example an inconsistency which would show
that may be perhaps looking at the languages not the correct place to look
at-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --it's applying that law.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Kane, if you can find--in the community plan there are
areas that are deSignated SBR. If you can find anything in law that clearly
establishes what SBR means, we'd be happy to use that as a starting
point. The problem that we find is that those people that created the SBR
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never created the language to explain what SBR is, never created the
language to explain what it was suppose to do, but they created the
definition in the community plan process. So we have no place to work
from, but we have a very clearly established definition that is in the
community plan that SBR is, there's an SBR category, but there's nothing
to work on. So there is no law that I know of that will say SBR means this
and this or this, but it was already clearly established in the community
plan definitions that there is an SBR. So properties that exist currently
have SBR designations. And when people in those designations want to
do something with their property, they're in a Catch-22 because they're
required to be in SBR but they can't do anything because there's no, no
meat behind what the SBR allows them or doesn't allow them to do. And
this is the case--same thing with Open Space. The State had an Open
Space designation. We don't have a clear definition. And even though
the State has a definition, you cannot refer to anything within the County
rules because they're not there. And if you say they're failed, then
perhaps we need to just take them off of the State rules as well as the
County, you know, just not have it exist. But unfortunately they do exist in
how we have been defining the community plans, but we don't have, it
was never completed as a process. And that's the point.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And, and I understand what you're saying, Mr.
Chairman. My point for this discussion prior to you proceeding is that the
basis or the intent of today's discussion is relating to the need for more
precise land-use definitions. And you've attached a copy of a bill that in
my mind is considered a failed bill. This bill never got to the finish line and
my, I would think that you would consider utilizing land-use law that's in
effect now and look at that as our vehicle to-CHAIR ARAKAWA: And all I'm, all I'm asking you, I will agree with you if you can
show me that law I will use it.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Well, and ... I ... but what you're trying to do Mr.
Chairman is you're trying to attach more precise definition in County Code.
Is it your intent to attach that specifically to Service Business Residential
district? Is that what your intent is? Are we only talking about that or are
you on a more general level in speaking about creating in your language
creating more precise definition in the County Code because your
statement--and again I'm just referring to your memo, Mr. Chairman. So
I'm just trying to understand where you're coming from. And in your
memo you are very general and even in your ...
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's intended to be general-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: --because it's intended to be all encompassing with a lot of
definitions.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And that is my point and-CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's very deliberate-COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
Chairman.

You just acknowledged my point then, Mr.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: By saying that it's general, then I'm asking you why
would you consider using something that has not gone through when in
fact you can look at other vehicles and examples that would show what
you're trying to achieve.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And all I ask from you is if you want me to use other
vehicles, please just explain to me where the other vehicles are. I'd be
perfectly happy to look at something like a SBR or an Open Space or all of
these things that were never addressed and I would be perfectly happy to
use them if you could find them.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm not gonna argue--I'm not gonna argue the point because
you know the department-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, no. I'm not here to argue, Mr. Chairman. I'm
just here to understand what you're trying to do that's all.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: What has occurred and you weren't on the Council when I
was on the Council when we're discussing a lot of these things. So the
history behind it was to take a lot of these things that were never
addressed by previous Councils although they created a situation whereby
people on a everyday basis are affected by it and for over 30 years it was
never addressed. So what we're trying to do is work with the department
and to clarify and clean up some of the mess that was left by, left by
previous Councils. If you feel that they are failed, then they are failed
because the Councils who previously should've addressed these items
never addressed the items and that is the reason that they are not there
right now. There is no way for us to get a definition that was never
created and that's the point I'm trying to make. So in that case we will
continue on. If there are any other questions by anyone else? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, just to summarize in my own mind
what we're trying to do is that for items that are already referred to within
documents that exist in the County Code and other places, all we're trying
to do in my mind is to simply say okay, this is what we mean when we
refer to for example an Open Space, this is what we refer to, and that I
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gather is all that, that we're being charged with in this. And, and it's not
defined or it's not confined specifically to these particular issues. It could
be bed and breakfast, it could be other things that we have not completely
defined, but we refer to continuously throughout our County documents.
(chuckled)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's correct. And, you know, with the bed and breakfast
we've been having people ask us well, what about agriculture? How do
you define bed and breakfast in agriculture areas? Well, it never was. So
it's gonna be part of our job in this Committee under this topic to go in and
look at bed and breakfast in agricultural district. The definition we're
looking at this morning, you know, what is it in, um, in, in the ag district
that we're gonna allow ... what is the discretionary point where we're
gonna say this is no longer a fruit stand, this is a growing business or a
grocery story--I mean those thing were never addressed so there's no
reference point that we can go to. We are the ones that are creating those
reference points. That's the point, the reason it's general is because
there's a lot of these little things that were never done and we need to
have the flexibility in order to now identify what those are. The Planning
Department has been working on a lot of these definitions for a long time,
but the Council never got around to--the bed and breakfast issue took us
three years. Ag bill about the same, three or four years?
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And we never were able to complete it out because we
could only handle segments of it. So what I'm trying to do now is I'm
trying to handle some of the other segments that needed to be addressed
and when we get to that point, we'll focus in on whatever they are, and
we'll create that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And one of the other possibilities that
may evolve from these land-use definitions could be the revival perhaps of
some of these bills is that also a possibility that we need to move out into
other committees.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. And we need--again, the Planning Department
having problems with a lot of these because there. .. these should've
been done years and years and years ago. It's like over 30 years that
these should've been done. And they just never were addressed. So as
the Chair I'm trying to address some of these.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thanks very much.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, I'm trying to make a connection here
between this item and the previous item we talked about. I presume this

LU 02126101

Page 50

is more informational we're looking at this, this is something that's just not
gonna, we're not gonna be done with today I presume.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Oh, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right. So I guess the players involved like Mr.
Hokama mentioned for Land Use item 20, uh, for future meetings we
should get other people involved as to how to come up with these
definitions and, um-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. And again,
before we got anything through
years, yeah, John? So that's the
tighten that up and hopefully get
a year we'll be doing good.

like the ag bill took us almost four years
and bed and breakfast was over three
kind of scope we're looking at. If we can
some of these defined within, you know,

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And if we can pass them in months, we'll be doing
spectacular. They just never been addressed.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, I commend you for at least taking
this on as like you imply I guess over 30 years it's about time we clean this
up. I think there's a lot of concerned citizens out there, you know, who
would like to at least get some specific definition to what SBR is. So,
okay, to, uh ... just for my own, you know, making me feel, yeah
(chuckled) my own information so okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And the process is a long process. So maybe I should let
John explain some of the process that we're gonna have to go through in
creating the definitions for the bill and then getting Planning Commissions
to look at some of these things and how it evolves. John, could you
explain some of the things we went through in the, um, first was the ag bill.
How, what the process actually is.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Committee Chair Arakawa, members of the Land
Use Committee, members of the public.
The process is an
extenuating ... it's a long process. It takes one, one year if you're
optimistic. Up to three years, uh ... is really more like it for a more
difficult bill like the Open Space ordinance. But essentially there are five
districts or designations in the community plans that we don't have zoning
ordinance for. SBR is of course one of 'em. Open Space, Rural Light
Industrial, Business/Multi-Family and Businessllndustrial. So we have a
situation where in the community plans we have designations for certain
areas, but we don't have zoning ordinances that correlate with those
designations. It creates a very significant problem not only for the
Planning Department, but also for individual applicants and property
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owners. So it appears that what Councilman Arakawa wants to do is
specifically address some of those areas.
Typically on a land use ordinance, if it's drafted by the Planning
Department, the Department will submit it to each Planning Commission
for their review and recommendations. The ordinance is also submitted to
agencies for review and comment. The Planning Department will prepare
a report of recommendations and submit that report to the Council for their
review and deliberations. These ordinances generally come to the Land
Use Committee. Land Use Committee will kick it around before it goes up
to full Council for first and second readings.
If an ordinance is prepared by the County Council, it'll then be transmitted
to the Planning Department for circulation to each of the
committees--excuse me--each of the Planning Commissions. Planning
Commissions will have a 120 days to turn that ordinance around and get it
back to the Council.
So in a nutshell, that's basically the process for these ordinances.
Controversial ordinances, again, can take up to three years.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And if there's a major difference in opinion between the
Planning Commissions and the Council and there's significant change is
done, then it repeats the process. So ... well, sort of repeat the process.
So it has to go through this whole approval process again. So literally this
can take years to get off the ground and this is why many previous
Councils have never addressed it because it is a monumental task at best.
So that's why those definitions just started there. But the people that have
to deal with the circumstances where they have a designation and they
have to live with that designation, they have to do something with their
property, they run into a problem because it's a Catch-22.
They ... they're suppose to do something that they can't do because
there's nothing there to tell them what they can and cannot do, and yet
they're required to do something. So it puts them in a very bad position.
So it costs them a lot of money to go in get a change of, um ... change
the zoning as well as sometimes a change of community--a community
plan amendment. So they have to go through this whole process because
somebody in their wisdom when they put it in the community plan decided
it would be really nice to have this designation. It sounds good, but they
never really completed the job and said this is what it's gonna be. Okay.
And that's, that's one of the big problems we'll have to deal with. So it'll
be an ongoing item. This is not a new way of doing things. In past
Councils that I've been on, again, the ag bill took us almost four years.
The bed and breakfast took us almost three years. So it's a process that
this Council, the Councils have gone through before. I'm not reinventing
the wheel on this. Any further questions? Yes, Dain.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In our binder there's a
letter, an inter-office correspondence dated April 12, 1996, a memo to
Travis Thompson, Director of Finance, from Dennis Ichikawa,
Administrator ... RPT Administrator. And the subject is the proposed bill
to establish Service Business Residential of Title 19 amendment. I don't
know if the Planning Department has reviewed this particular letter
(change of tape) this letter has some serious reservations about this bill
and pretty much in its entirety, uh, and, and it talks about how the Service
Business Residential District seemingly encourages conflicting uses which
may ultimately reflect in lower real, real estate values. And the last
comment that's made in this letter and is it may require Planning to return
to the drawing boards to re-think this critical issue of integrating
neighborhood scale commercial uses with residential uses.
I read this Mr. Chairman because again I'm, I'm trying to encourage you,
Mr. Chairman, to reconsider using this particular bill as your vehicle
because you made a comment earlier that the reason why this thing got
filed was because it was towards the end of the year and there was really
no discussion on it, but this tends to show that there was actual discussion
and that the then Council was aware of the downfalls or the pitfalls of this
particular bill and it, I think the proof of that is right here on this document.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: If you look at it further, you'll also, you'll also notice that
many of his concerns were the fact that bed and breakfast issues, inn's
and everything else was combined, okay. And the past Councils have
separated out those items for that very reason. We didn't want to combine
all of those things in one bill and pass it out. So the intent-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: However-CHAIR ARAKAWA: --the intent and what has occurred already is part of it is to
separate out the items so that it's not all one item as was originally
proposed when this came up. Which is why I'm saying this is a starting
point where we're taking segments of this like the bed, like the SBR, which
is just part of the entire package, and working at 'em one at a time. If we
had passed the original item, Travis Thompson's comments were very
pertinent and the reason we separate it out was because we respected
the fact that if you pass everything at one time, you pass the bed and
breakfast, you pass the home occupation, and you pass everything in one
fell swoop, there would be major, major concerns that may occur. So to
that respect you're correct, but we did respect the fact that we needed to
look at it and so we started separating it out and that's the intent.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So my question and final question ... again to
understand so what you've brought back, what you've revived after this
got filed in 1998, are you bringing back a revised version or is this the
original version that faced the scrutiny of in this case Travis Thompson got
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on this memo? In other words, is this something that's revised or is this
the original one that got shot down for the reasons that are stated in that?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We brought, we brought back the topic and everything that
was in the folder the references to that. So we don't just bring back
selective things for, for you to peruse. If you look further in what we're
doing when the Planning Commissions looked at it they took out, they
deleted the bed and breakfast, they deleted County inn, they only looked
at SBR areas. They deleted vacation units.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I see that.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So all of those other areas which is erroneous to and didn't
pertain to SBR were removed and how they wanted to deal with it, and we
need to do the same thing. So yes, we brought back the item, but at the
same time if you look all of the reference materials that's there, we very
clearly will see in the reference material that all of those things that we
need to be discussing specifically need to be taken out from, away from
SBR, isolating SBR. In other words taking away things like having
four-plex dwellings, uh, bed and breakfast, vacation units, all those other
things, and just concentrate on SBR and then try and clearly define, create
our own definition of SBR, work it through. That's, that's what's been
done in the past.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. No more questions. Thanks.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Any further discussion? If not, we're
going to defer the item and adjourn the meeting. Rick.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. Just a comment before
you defer the item, Mr. Chair. And again it depends on which perspective.
Now that I'm a Council member I guess I'll take the Council's perspective.
When I was a member of the Lanai CAC I guess I took that, that role in
that perspective. But, you know, I don't want the conception that the
Council for whatever reason chose not to take up the items or enact
certain ordinances to take care of this. Because as I recall in 1993, Mr.
Chairman, when we worked on the Lanai Island's plan, uh, suggestions
were made from the department through the planner assigned to us that
we should consider some type of new designation. And there was
concern about how can you designate something that doesn't exist? And
so maybe from a planner's pOint of view, you know, it's, it's something to
move forward because it's a concept from a planning standpoint it made
good sense, maybe not through day to day application. But then again no
one ever thought about well, do we just look at the existing law and tweak
it and see if we can then adapt it to the community plan designation, or do
we do it this way we're trying to enact a law to fit the community plan
designation? I'm not here at this point to make a decision right or wrong,
but I don't feel it totally the Council's responsibility for now trying to put in a
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policy that an administrative department decided was a good phrase or
designation to put in a plan.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. And, and you're absolutely right. This, this was
something, when I was on the CAC we were told the same thing. You
know you can create these things, um, but we never created the
definitions. So inadvertently as member of the CAC not being aware of
what happened, we put a lot of citizens at risk financially and otherwise by
creating these designations that had no definitions. So now we're faced
with the job on the opposite side of carrying through that task and creating
the definitions for the things that we were visualizing in our own minds
when we did this and we're thinking we're doing a good thing. We just
have to follow through and try and carry it out. A good case in point was
the Open Space on Lanai. When we were looking at the definition we
couldn't find the definition and there was a lot of discussion does that
mean we could have one dwelling here or no dwellings? What does Open
Space define? And because we didn't have a definition, you know, we
went to Corp. Counsel to try and get one, the, the same Open Space
definition that was defined as-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And Chairman, that's a great example. Because
a lot of the concerns was why don't we keep it under State land use
classification? That we had it under conservation.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We could but we-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We're told we have no conservation category so
we cannot put-CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But yet, we were convinced to go Open Space
which again doesn't exist and it's not a category for us to designate either.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And, and again that's the problem that the Chair is trying to
now address because we're in this Catch-22 where we've created these
ideals and we have no way of defining what they are or there's no meat to
it. So we have to go ahead now and carry out the ... complete the project
and that's where we're at.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, Chairman, I thank you for indulging me.
just wanna express my frustrations-CHAIR ARAKAWA: (chuckled)
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --that we all share mutual responsibility to make
it happen and it's not the Councilor the Planning Department or the CAC
or the poor property owner in a land use dilemma. I just wanna make it
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clear that, you know, we are subject to how things get presented to us
also.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. And I will point out, you know, I was a part of the
Kahului-Wailuku CAC. There's places, businesses in Paukukalo for
instance that have the SBR designation. As a member of the CAC I
passed that SBR designation with the intent of coming back later on and
redefining it, but those, some of those landowners, friends of mine have
said, you know, now we're stuck. We don't know what to do with it. And
what are we gonna do? Are we gonna rezone or are we gonna get
redesignation? And what I'm hoping is that we can just define or create
the definition so that they can exist under what we intended them to exist.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further discussion? If not, we will defer--any
objections to deferring this item?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (ex. WN, CT)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any objections to adjourning the meeting?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (ex. WN, CT)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Meeting adjourned.
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